
  

 

 
 

138 S. Brandon St.  Fallbrook CA 92028  760-731-9187 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

REGULAR BOARD  MEETING 

 
 

WEDNESDAY 
JULY 12, 2017 

 
6:00 PM 

 
AT 

 
FPUD 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
990 EAST MISSION ROAD  
FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



AGENDA 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, July 12, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 

B. ADDITIONS TO  AGENDA 
Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific situations, as 

set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board 

finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item 

was continued from an earlier  meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the 

earlier meeting. 
 

 

C. PRESENTATIONS 

 C1. Vanessa Hernandez, President – “Fallbrook Outreach” by Fallbrook Youth Advocacy  

  Coalition (Mental Health Systems – North Inland Community Prevention Program) 

 C2. Bruce Schwandt – “Questions And Concerns About The Hospital Sale” 

 C3. Fallbrook Healing Center by Executive Vice President  

  Patricia Blum, Ph.D., CPRP of Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc.  

 C4. 2017-2018 Community Health Contracts 

 
 

D. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the District.  For the 

record, please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and presented to the Board President or the 

recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more than five minutes  

 
 

E. CONSENT ITEMS 

 E1. Approval of May 2017 Financial Statements  

 E2. Minutes of June 7, 2017 Special Board Meeting 

 E3. Minutes of June 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

 E3. Minutes of June 14, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

 
 

F. REPORTS 

F1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

F2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 

F3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 

F4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer (presented by Director Mroz) 

F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 
 

G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 G1. Proposal to Create and Adopt a District Fiscal Policy 

 G2. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 418 – Authorization to Dispose of District 

  Surplus Property 

 G3. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 419 – Ratification/Approval 

  of Purchase and Sale Agreement and Authorizing Signatories  

 G4. CSDA Board of Directors 2017 Election 

 

 

 
 

Page 1 of 121



H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 

 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas  

  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• Healthy You! Healthy Communities! – Thursday, July 13, 2017, California 

Endowment, Sacramento 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 

– Monday, July 17, 2017, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Public Utility District Board 

Room 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, August  2,  2:00-3:00pm 

   • Woman of Wellness – Thursday, August 3, 2017, 6pm – Fallbrook Library 

   • ACHD 65th Annual Meeting – September 12-14, 2017, San Diego 

H2. Next Regular Board meeting –  Wednesday, August 9, 2017, Fallbrook Public Utility 

District Board Room 

 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTE: This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration Office on Friday, June 9, 2017. The American 

with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 

benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior to 

the meeting at 760-731-9187. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 121



Page 3 of 121



ORGANIZATION PROGRAM AMOUNT

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTH COUNTY SUMMER WATER SAFETY  $      10,000.00 

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF NORTH COUNTY TRIPLE PLAY  $      40,000.00 

FALLBROOK CITIZENS CRIME PREVENTION 

COMMITTEE (FCCPC)
GANAS MENTORING PROGRAM  $      10,000.00 

FALLBROOK FAMILY HEALTH CENTER 
HEALTH PROMOTION COORDINATION - INTEGRATION 

AND EDUCATION FOR THE COMMUNITY
 $    100,000.00 

FALLBROOK FOOD PANTRY NUTRITIOUS FOOD FOR OUR NEIGHBORS  $      72,000.00 

FALLBROOK SENIOR CENTER
FSC MOBILITY/EXERCISE AREA PROTECTIVE COVERING 

PROGRAM
 $      12,600.00 

FALLBROOK SENIOR CENTER SENIOR NUTRITION-HOME DELIVERED MEAL  $      75,000.00 

FALLBROOK SMILES PROJECT CELEBRATE HEALTH  $      71,500.00 

FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE CARE ADVOCATE PROGRAM  $      59,838.25 

FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE
CARE VAN & EXPANDED RIDES TRANSPORTATION 

PROGRAM
 $      68,773.00 

FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE
DOOR THROUGH DOOR HOSPITAL TO HOME 

PROGRAM
 $      50,918.70 

FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE RESPITE SUPPORT AT THE ADULT DAY CARE  $      29,583.40 

HEALTHY ADVENTURES FALLBROOK COMMUNITY CENTER WELLNESS PROJECT  $        9,000.00 

JEREMIAH'S RANCH JEREMIAH'S RANCH SUPPORT GROUP  $      14,750.00 

LIVE OAK PARK COALITION
HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE 

COMMUNITY
 $      40,000.00 

MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEMS - NORTH INLAND 

COMMUNITY PREVENTION PROGRAM
FALLBROOK YOUTH ADVOCACY COALITION (FYAC)  $        9,249.00 

MICHELLE'S PLACE BREAST HEALTH ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  $      24,000.00 

PALOMAR FAMILY COUNSELING HEALTHY BODIES, HEALTHY MINDS  $      79,000.00 

REINS
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & WELLNESS THERAPY 

PROGRAM
 $      65,000.00 

TRAUMA INTERVENTION PROGRAM OF SAN 

DIEGO (TIP)
TRAUMA INTERVENTION PROGRAMS  $        9,000.00 

UCSD EYE MOBILE FOR CHILDREN UCSD EYE MOBILE FOR CHILDREN  $        8,500.00 

TOTAL  AWARDED: $858,712.35

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018

BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENTATION OF COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE CONTRACTS

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT

Page 4 of 121



Page 5 of 121



May 31, 17 Apr 30, 17 $ Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
102.9 · Cal Trust Investment Account 4,246,902.70 4,238,380.86 8,521.84
102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating 1,164,974.32 1,161,716.59 3,257.73
102.6 · Cash in Bank -LAIF 1,448,487.47 1,448,487.47 0.00

Total Checking/Savings 6,860,364.49 6,848,584.92 11,779.57

Other Current Assets
104 · Prepaid Insurance 5,516.04 7,384.18 (1,868.14)
107 · Tax apportion receivable 0.00 214,331.45 (214,331.45)
114 · Interest Receivable 4,527.21 4,296.07 231.14

Total Other Current Assets 10,043.25 226,011.70 (215,968.45)

Total Current Assets 6,870,407.74 7,074,596.62 (204,188.88)

Fixed Assets
120.01 · ALVARADO BLDG 291,240.00 291,240.00 0.00
121 · Equipment 21,394.96 21,394.96 0.00
121.2 · Equipment Depreciation (19,653.45) (19,581.99) (71.46)
122.0 · ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

122.01 · FALLBROOK HOSPITAL 4,417,521.00 4,417,521.00 0.00
122.02 · WELLNESS CENTER 291,240.00 291,240.00 0.00

Total 122.0 · ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE 4,708,761.00 4,708,761.00 0.00

Total Fixed Assets 5,001,742.51 5,001,813.97 (71.46)

TOTAL ASSETS 11,872,150.25 12,076,410.59 (204,260.34)

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

140 · Accounts Payable 33,044.12 29,420.06 3,624.06

Total Accounts Payable 33,044.12 29,420.06 3,624.06

Credit Cards
150.1 · American Express 41007 810.90 (781.16) 1,592.06

Total Credit Cards 810.90 (781.16) 1,592.06

Other Current Liabilities
204 · Accrued  Vacation & Sick Leave 5,608.24 5,608.24 0.00
215 · Comm Healthcare Programs Pble

215.24 · District Sponsored Programs 25,829.54 26,048.71 (219.17)

Total 215 · Comm Healthcare Programs ... 25,829.54 26,048.71 (219.17)

Total Other Current Liabilities 31,437.78 31,656.95 (219.17)

Total Current Liabilities 65,292.80 60,295.85 4,996.95

Total Liabilities 65,292.80 60,295.85 4,996.95

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET COMPARISON

Comparison of May 2017 to April 2017

Report 1

Page 6 of 121



May 31, 17 Apr 30, 17 $ Change

Equity
300 · Unrestricted Fund Balance 11,464,702.03 11,464,702.03 0.00
Net Income 342,155.42 551,412.71 (209,257.29)

Total Equity 11,806,857.45 12,016,114.74 (209,257.29)

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 11,872,150.25 12,076,410.59 (204,260.34)

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET COMPARISON

Comparison of May 2017 to April 2017

Report 1

Page 7 of 121



May 17 Jul '16 - ...

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 14,470 1,772,010
403 · Interest / Dividends 4,527 51,161
406 · Unearned Inc(Loss) - Cal Trust 4,226 (33,544)

Total 400. · District 23,223 1,789,626

450. · Properties
450.01 · Disposition of Surplus Property 133,030
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 9,600 57,600

Total 460 · Lease Income 9,600 57,600

Total 450. · Properties 9,600 190,630

Total Income 32,823 1,980,256

Gross Profit 32,823 1,980,256

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 1,152
500.10 · Salaries 17,870 192,747
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,482 15,454
500.14 · W/C Insurance 136 1,497
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 891 10,905
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,500 14,300
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,061 15,824
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 15,455
500.19 · Insurance - General 2,694 39,257
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 9,350
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 8,600
500.23 · General Counsel 9,111 88,421
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 497 3,525
02 · I.T. and Website services 306 4,686
03 · Refreshments 29 5,531
04 · Office supplies 583 9,081
05 · Admin fees 236 1,370
06 · Independent Contract Services 3,580 34,126

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 5,231 58,318

500.27 · Depreciation 71 492
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 495 14,259
500.32 · Consultant Fees 16,350 72,325
500.33 · Copier Lease 839 8,860
580.01 · General Election 309

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 58,580 567,524

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Income Statement

For the Month Ended May 31, 2017 & Fiscal Year to Date

Report 2

Page 8 of 121



May 17 Jul '16 - ...

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.14 · Appraisal Services 6,435 16,435
590.01 · Building Engineer 8,061 82,453
590.02 · Gas & Electric 4,424 55,016
590.03 · Water 1,856 25,444
590.04 · Waste Management 93 1,367
590.05 · Security 1,100 12,113
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,600 18,813
590.07 · Custodial Services 300 3,600
590.08 · Elevator 173 2,532
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 15 173
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 9 3,587
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,361 38,495
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 1,062 2,862
590.13 · CHS Residual Transition Expense 2,500

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 27,487 265,390

600 · Community Healthcare Programs
600.02 · Flbk Citizens Crime Prevention 8,000
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 2,500 10,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 2,500 15,000
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 3,000 9,000
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 12,000
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 7,500 37,200
600.07 · Fallbrook Senior Citizens Club 15,563 61,888
600.08 · Smiles Project 17,500 70,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Coun.Serv. 18,500 74,000
600.14 · Flbk Family Health Center 21,250 85,000
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 12,500 130,339
600.18 · Flbk Comm Project - Food Pantry 15,000 60,000
600.33 · REINS Therapy 10,200 46,300
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Programs 8,000
600.46 · North Inland Comm Prev Program 9,620
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 6,500
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 8,500
600.57 · North County Fire Protect Distr 54,839

Total 600 · Community Healthcare Programs 126,013 706,186

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · A+ Urgent Care 30,000 99,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 30,000 99,000

Total Expense 242,080 1,638,100

Net Ordinary Income (209,257) 342,155

Net Income (209,257) 342,155

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Income Statement

For the Month Ended May 31, 2017 & Fiscal Year to Date

Report 2

Page 9 of 121



Jul '16 -... Budget $ Over ...

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 1,772,010 1,677,090 94,920
403 · Interest / Dividends 51,161 37,849 13,312
406 · Unearned Inc(Loss) - Cal Trust (33,544) 0 (33,544)

Total 400. · District 1,789,626 1,714,939 74,687

450. · Properties
450.01 · Disposition of Surplus Property 133,030 0 133,030
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 57,600 52,800 4,800

Total 460 · Lease Income 57,600 52,800 4,800

Total 450. · Properties 190,630 52,800 137,830

Total Income 1,980,256 1,767,739 212,517

Gross Profit 1,980,256 1,767,739 212,517

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 1,152
500.10 · Salaries 192,747 216,994 (24,247)
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 15,454 23,100 (7,646)
500.14 · W/C Insurance 1,497 1,054 443
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 10,905 16,830 (5,925)
500.16 · Board Stipends 14,300 24,200 (9,900)
500.17 · Education & Conferences 15,824 13,750 2,074
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 15,455 13,409 2,046
500.19 · Insurance - General 39,257 41,250 (1,993)
500.20 · Independent Accounting Servi... 9,350 9,350 0
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 8,600 8,500 100
500.23 · General Counsel 88,421 114,583 (26,163)
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 3,525 4,950 (1,425)
02 · I.T. and Website services 4,686 2,400 2,286
03 · Refreshments 5,531 4,033 1,497
04 · Office supplies 9,081 14,667 (5,585)
05 · Admin fees 1,370
06 · Independent Contract Services 34,126 50,494 (16,368)

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 58,318 76,544 (18,226)

500.27 · Depreciation 492 1,522 (1,030)
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 14,259 5,850 8,409
500.32 · Consultant Fees 72,325 14,400 57,925
500.33 · Copier Lease 8,860 5,500 3,360
500.85 · Calif Mandated Reimbursement 0 (9,167) 9,167
580.01 · General Election 309 40,000 (39,691)

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 567,524 617,670 (50,146)

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget

July 2016 through May 2017

Report 3

Page 10 of 121



Jul '16 -... Budget $ Over ...

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.14 · Appraisal Services 16,435
590.01 · Building Engineer 82,453 77,458 4,995
590.02 · Gas & Electric 55,016 86,350 (31,334)
590.03 · Water 25,444 22,000 3,444
590.04 · Waste Management 1,367 1,375 (8)
590.05 · Security 12,113 12,375 (262)
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environ... 18,813 29,792 (10,978)
590.07 · Custodial Services 3,600 1,375 2,225
590.08 · Elevator 2,532 1,833 698
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 173 1,375 (1,202)
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 3,587 19,388 (15,801)
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Servi... 38,495 0 38,495
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 2,862
590.13 · CHS Residual Transition Expe... 2,500

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 265,390 253,321 12,070

600 · Community Healthcare Programs
600.02 · Flbk Citizens Crime Prevention 8,000 8,000 0
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 10,000 10,000 0
600.58 · Michelle's Place 15,000 15,000 0
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 9,000 9,000 0
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 12,000 12,000 0
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 37,200 37,200 0
600.07 · Fallbrook Senior Citizens Club 61,888 61,863 25
600.08 · Smiles Project 70,000 70,000 0
600.11 · Palomar Family Coun.Serv. 74,000 74,000 0
600.14 · Flbk Family Health Center 85,000 85,000 0
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 130,339 130,089 250
600.18 · Flbk Comm Project - Food Pan... 60,000 60,000 0
600.33 · REINS Therapy 46,300 46,300 0
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Programs 8,000 8,000 0
600.46 · North Inland Comm Prev Progr... 9,620 9,620 0
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 6,500 6,500 0
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 8,500 8,500 0
600.57 · North County Fire Protect Distr 54,839 29,839 25,000

Total 600 · Community Healthcare Progra... 706,186 680,911 25,275

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · A+ Urgent Care 99,000 0 99,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 99,000 0 99,000

Total Expense 1,638,100 1,551,902 86,198

Net Ordinary Income 342,155 215,837 126,319

Net Income 342,155 215,837 126,319

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget

July 2016 through May 2017

Report 3

Page 11 of 121



TOTAL
Jul 16 Aug 16 Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul '16 - Jun 17

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 13,065 12,100 15,100 13,506 75,399 633,527 253,274 42,453 45,983 388,488 184,194 22,910 1,700,000
403 · Interest / Dividends 3,841 3,925 2,044 3,100 2,663 5,116 5,230 2,693 3,815 2,690 2,731 2,151 40,000

Total 400. · District 16,906 16,025 17,144 16,606 78,062 638,643 258,505 45,146 49,798 391,178 186,926 25,061 1,740,000

450. · Properties
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 450. · Properties 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total Income 21,706 20,825 21,944 21,406 82,862 643,443 263,305 49,946 54,598 395,978 191,726 29,861 1,797,600

Gross Profit 21,706 20,825 21,944 21,406 82,862 643,443 263,305 49,946 54,598 395,978 191,726 29,861 1,797,600

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.10 · Salaries 16,533 18,533 18,533 18,533 20,533 20,533 20,533 20,533 20,910 20,910 20,910 21,006 238,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 2,100 25,200
500.14 · W/C Insurance 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 1,150
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 1,530 18,360
500.16 · Board Stipends 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 26,400
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 7,500 591 591 591 591 591 591 590 591 591 591 591 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 0 0 8,500 0 0 8,500
500.23 · General Counsel 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 450 5,400
02 · I.T. and Website services 933 250 250 0 250 217 0 0 250 0 250 0 2,400
03 · Refreshments 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 367 4,400
04 · Office supplies 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
06 · Independent Contract Services 2,176 2,176 2,176 5,576 5,556 5,506 5,506 5,506 5,406 5,404 5,506 5,506 56,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 5,259 4,576 4,576 7,726 7,956 7,873 7,656 7,656 7,806 7,554 7,906 7,656 84,200

500.27 · Depreciation 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 138 1,661
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 4,000 250 250 250 100 100 100 100 200 250 250 150 6,000
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,000 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 650 600 600 600 15,000
500.33 · Copier Lease 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
500.85 · Calif Mandated Reimbursement (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (833) (10,000)
580.01 · General Election 0 0 0 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 63,290 46,598 46,598 98,248 51,828 51,745 51,528 51,527 52,155 51,903 52,255 52,001 669,671

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.01 · Building Engineer 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 7,042 84,500
590.02 · Gas & Electric 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 7,850 94,200
590.03 · Water 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 24,000
590.04 · Waste Management 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.05 · Security 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 13,500
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 2,708 32,500
590.07 · Custodial Services 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.08 · Elevator 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 2,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 1,763 21,150

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 23,029 276,350

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2016 - 2017

July 2016 through June 2017

Page 12 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4

LindaB
Typewritten Text

LindaB
Typewritten Text



TOTAL
Jul 16 Aug 16 Sep 16 Oct 16 Nov 16 Dec 16 Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 May 17 Jun 17 Jul '16 - Jun 17

600 · Community Healthcare Programs
600.02 · Flbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 8,000
600.59 · Palomar Health Foundation 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 10,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 15,000
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 0 0 3,000 0 9,000
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 6,000 0 0 0 6,000 0 12,000
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 14,700 0 0 0 7,500 0 0 7,500 0 0 7,500 0 37,200
600.07 · Senior Citizens Center 15,275 0 0 0 15,525 0 0 15,525 0 0 15,538 0 61,863
600.08 · Smiles Project 17,500 0 0 0 17,500 0 0 17,500 0 0 17,500 0 70,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Coun.Serv. 18,500 0 0 0 18,500 0 0 18,500 0 0 18,500 0 74,000
600.14 · Flbk Family Health Center 21,250 0 0 0 21,250 0 0 21,250 0 0 21,250 0 85,000
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 39,446 0 0 0 39,196 0 0 39,197 0 0 12,250 0 130,089
600.18 · Flbk Comm Project - Food Pantry 15,000 0 0 0 15,000 0 0 15,000 0 0 15,000 0 60,000
600.33 · REINS Therapy 15,700 0 0 0 10,200 0 0 10,200 0 0 10,200 0 46,300
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Programs 4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,000 0 0 0 0 8,000
600.46 · North Inland Comm Prev Program 3,206 0 0 0 3,206 0 0 3,208 0 0 0 0 9,620
600.47 · FUHS - Asperger's Support Ctr 0 0 0 0 3,250 0 0 3,250 0 0 0 0 6,500
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,500 0 0 0 0 8,500
600.57 · North County Fire Protect Distr 29,839 0 0 0 0 0 29,839

Total 600 · Community Healthcare Programs 213,416 0 0 0 167,127 0 0 174,630 0 0 125,738 0 680,911

Total Expense 299,735 69,627 69,627 121,277 241,984 74,774 74,557 249,186 75,184 74,932 201,022 75,030 1,626,932

Net Ordinary Income (278,028) (48,801) (47,682) (99,871) (159,122) 568,669 188,748 (199,240) (20,586) 321,046 (9,296) (45,168) 170,668

Net Income (278,028) (48,801) (47,682) (99,871) (159,122) 568,669 188,748 (199,240) (20,586) 321,046 (9,296) (45,168) 170,668

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2016 - 2017

July 2016 through June 2017

Page 13 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4



Page 14 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 5



Page 15 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 6



Type Date Name Amount Balance
400. · District

402 · Property tax revenue
Deposit 07/20/16 County of SD-pro... 13,064.78 13,064.78
Deposit 08/10/16 County of SD-pro... 28,616.73 41,681.51
Deposit 09/07/16 County of SD-pro... 9,576.71 51,258.22
Deposit 10/04/16 County of SD-pro... 23,342.78 74,601.00
Deposit 11/02/16 County of SD-pro... 50,132.27 124,733.27
Deposit 12/07/16 County of SD-pro... 600,065.52 724,798.79
Deposit 01/18/17 County of SD-pro... 297,496.04 1,022,294.83
Deposit 02/15/17 County of SD-pro... 63,789.21 1,086,084.04
General Jou... 03/31/17 County of SD-pro... 457,124.14 1,543,208.18
General Jou... 04/30/17 214,331.45 1,757,539.63
General Jou... 05/31/17 14,469.90 1,772,009.53

Total 402 · Property tax revenue 1,772,009.53 1,772,009.53

Total 400. · District 1,772,009.53 1,772,009.53

TOTAL 1,772,009.53 1,772,009.53

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Property Tax Revenue - Fiscal Year to Date

July 2016 through May 2017

Report 7
Page 16 of 121



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating
Check 05/03/17 9079 Howard Salmon Reimbursement: Expenses ACHD-... -156.79
Bill P... 05/03/17 9080 AT&T - phone lines 7607318344-481 5 -148.95
Bill P... 05/03/17 9081 Aztec Cleaning & Maintena... Office cleaning - Inv. 203810 -150.00
Bill P... 05/03/17 9082 FPUD - FHD 1   007721 007721-000 -89.22
Bill P... 05/03/17 9083 FPUD - FHD 2   007720-001 007720-001 -109.74
Bill P... 05/03/17 9084 FPUD - Hospital 1  007720... 007720 -1,695.52
Bill P... 05/03/17 9085 SDG&E- Hospital - 8171 / ... -3,461.52
Bill P... 05/03/17 9086 SDG&E FHD - 6994 40605976994 -536.54
Bill P... 05/03/17 9087 T.R.Y. Enterprises Inv. 8047 - Patrol Services for May ... -1,100.00
Bill P... 05/03/17 9088 Village News Invoice 21767 -1,315.00
Bill P... 05/03/17 9089 A+ Urgent Care, Inc. Subsidy #4 of 6 -10,000.00
Bill P... 05/03/17 9090 A+ Urgent Care, Inc. Subsidy #5 of 6 -10,000.00
Bill P... 05/03/17 9091 Karn Engineering & Survey... Property survey -1,300.00
Check 05/09/17 9092 Boys & Girls Club Grant 274 TRIPLE PLAY PROGRA... -7,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9093 Fallbrook Family Health C... Grant 276 - BEHAVIORAL HEALT... -12,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9094 Fallbrook Food Pantry Grant 278 NUTRITION FOR THE ... -15,000.00
Check 05/09/17 9095 Fallbrook Senior Center Grant 279 - MOBILITY / EXERCIS... -1,813.00
Check 05/09/17 9096 Fallbrook Senior Center Grant 280 - NURTITION - HOME ... -13,750.00
Check 05/09/17 9097 Fallbrook Smiles Project Grant 281 CELEBRATE HEALTH -... -17,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9098 Foundation for Senior Care Grant 284 CARE ADVOCACY PR... -12,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9099 Healthy Adventures Found... Grant 286  FALLBROOK COMMU... -3,000.00
Check 05/09/17 9100 Michelle's Place Grant 289 - BREAST HEALTH AS... -2,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9101 Palomar Family Counselin... Grant 291 HEALTHY BODIES, HE... -18,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9102 Palomar Health Foundation Grant 292 SENIOR CARE GRANT... -2,500.00
Check 05/09/17 9103 Reins Grant 293 CONSULTING THERAP... -10,200.00
Bill P... 05/09/17 9104 Ace Party Productions Audio / Visual rentals; Contract No.... -169.10
Bill P... 05/09/17 9105 American Express - Credit ... 0-41007 -1,741.43
Bill P... 05/09/17 9106 AT&T U-Verse - computer 146524365 -100.00
Bill P... 05/09/17 9107 Fallbrook Waste - Hospital... 20-T3 439928 -92.70
Bill P... 05/09/17 9108 Galvanized strategies form... Retainer - Community engagement... -4,000.00
Bill P... 05/09/17 9109 Glennie's Office Products, ... 6493 -153.89
Bill P... 05/09/17 9110 Iron Mountain-153 CHSRM -1,119.55
Bill P... 05/09/17 9111 Iron Mountain SX-302 SX302/Fallbrook Hosp. -913.93
Bill P... 05/09/17 9112 Palomar Mountain Premiu... 45919 -672.32
Bill P... 05/09/17 9113 Print Kwik 2 posters / Inv. 14551 -97.88
Bill P... 05/09/17 9114 Purchase Power (Pitney B... 8000909009769550 -136.57
Bill P... 05/09/17 9115 Sun Realty Property research for FRHD 4/9-5/... -1,200.00
Check 05/09/17 9116 Fallbrook Family Health C... Grant 277 - UNCOMPENSATED C... -8,750.00
Check 05/15/17 9117 Pamela Knox Reimburse - Medicare, Town Hall r... -175.72
Bill P... 05/16/17 9118 Ascent Elevator Services, I... Elevator Service - Inv. 28503 -173.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9119 Aztec Cleaning & Maintena... Office cleaning - Inv. 203813 -150.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9120 Bradshaw Engineering Corp. 2016 Title 19 Inspection of Automa... -375.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9121 Paragon Services Enginee... Inv. 163168; April hours worked -7,204.79
Bill P... 05/16/17 9122 Scott & Jackson Esq. Professional services 2017 APRIL -4,655.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9123 Streamline Website monthly fee April 2017 - In... -200.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9124 TRL Systems, Inc. FAL004 -480.00
Bill P... 05/16/17 9125 Kathleen Bogle 4/30 invoice and 4/30 add'l. services -1,750.00
Bill P... 05/30/17 9126 AT&T - phone lines 7607318344-481 5 -148.86
Bill P... 05/30/17 9127 Aztec Cleaning & Maintena... Office cleaning - Inv. 203816 -150.00
Bill P... 05/30/17 9128 CalPERS 1559595490 -780.86
Bill P... 05/30/17 9129 Centraforce, LLC Invoice 10372; Community2 and P... -11,250.00
Bill P... 05/30/17 9130 Citrus Plaza Self Storage Storage Unit #322 rental fee 6/1-6/... -203.00
Bill P... 05/30/17 9131 Fallbrook Chamber of Co... Wellness Walk Promotion/Advertisi... -20.00
Bill P... 05/30/17 9132 FPUD - FHD 1   007721 007721-000 -84.22
Bill P... 05/30/17 9133 FPUD - FHD 2   007720-001 007720-001 -130.95

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Check Detail Report - May 2017

Report 8

Page 17 of 121



Type Date Num Name Memo Amount

Bill P... 05/30/17 9134 FPUD - Hospital 1  007720... 007720 -1,640.99
Bill P... 05/30/17 9135 SDG&E- Hospital - 8171 / ... -3,899.56
Bill P... 05/30/17 9136 SDG&E FHD - 6994 40605976994 -523.96
Bill P... 05/30/17 9137 Touchbase 344664 -54.93
Bill P... 05/30/17 9138 TRL Systems, Inc. FAL004 -686.87
Bill P... 05/30/17 9139 Vanguard Realty Advisors Retainer for Professional Service A... -3,300.00
Bill P... 05/31/17 9140 A+ Urgent Care, Inc. Subsidy #6 of 6 -10,000.00
Bill P... 05/31/17 9141 Konica Minolta Leasing - qds 061-0116888-000 -842.90

Total 102.2 · Cash in Bank - New Operating -215,354.26

TOTAL -215,354.26

Report 8

Page 18 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text



INCOME

402 - Property Tax Revenue $2,000,000.00

403 - Interest / Dividends $60,000.00

406 - Unearned Inc (Loss) - Cal Trust

Total 400 - District $2,060,000.00

460 - Lease Income

460.01 - A+ Urgent Care $57,600.00

TOTAL INCOME $2,117,600.00

EXPENSES

500 - Administrative Expense

500.36 - Accrued Vacation & Sick Time $20,000.00

500.10 - Salaries $260,000.00

500.12 - Payroll Taxes $22,000.00

500.14 - W/C Insurance $2,000.00

500.15 - Employee Health & Welfare $13,000.00

500.16 - Board Stipends $18,000.00

500.17 - Education & Conferences $18,000.00

500.18 - Dues & Subscriptions $15,500.00

500.19 - Insurance - General $25,000.00

500.20 - Independent Accounting Services $10,200.00

500.21 - Annual Independent Audit $9,000.00

500.23 - General Counsel $90,000.00

500.25 - Office Expense

 - 01 - Communications $4,000.00

 - 02 - IT and Website Services $6,000.00

 - 03 - Refreshments $6,500.00

 - 04 - Office Supplies $13,000.00

 - 05 - Admin Fees $5,000.00

 - 06 - Independent Contract Services $60,000.00

500.27 - Depreciation $1,200.00

500.29 - Dist. Promotions & Publications $22,000.00

500.32 - Consultant Fees $140,000.00

500.33 - Copier Lease $10,000.00

500.45 - Community Garden $10,000.00

580.01 - General Election $45,000.00

Total 500 - Administrative Expenses $825,400.00

590 - Management & Maintenance

590.02 - Gas & Electric $20,000.00

590.03 - Water $10,000.00

590.04 - Waste Management $1,500.00

590.05 - Security $17,000.00

590.06 - Landscape - Grounds Environment $12,000.00

590.07 - Custodial Services $10,000.00

590.08 - Elevator $2,000.00

590.09 - Vehicle Expense $300.00

590.10 - Maintenance Services & Repairs $4,000.00

590.11 - Medical Record Store & Service $40,000.00

590.12 - Fire Alarm System $3,000.00

590.13 - Renovation/Improvements $50,000.00

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
DRAFT BUDGET FOR JULY 1, 2017 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2018

Page 19 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 9



Total 590 - Management & Maintenance $169,800.00

600 - Community Health Contracts

600.04 - Boys & Girls Club (2) Summer Water Safety Program $10,000.00

Triple Play $40,000.00

600.02 - Fallbrook Citizens Crime Prevention Comm. GANAS Mentoring Program $10,000.00

600.14 - Fallbrook Family Health Center Health Promotion Coordination $100,000.00

600.18 - Fallbrook Food Pantry Nutr. Food for Our Hungry Neighbors $72,000.00

600.07 - Fallbrook Senior Citizens Service Club (2) Exercise Area Protective Covering $12,600.00

Senior Nutrition - Home Delivered Meal $75,000.00

600.08 - Fallbrook Smiles Project Celebrate Health $71,500.00

600.17 - Foundation for Senior Care (4) Care Advocate Program $59,838.25

Care Van & Expanded Rides Trans. Pgm $68,773.00

Door through  Door/Hosp to Home Pgm $50,918.70

Respite Support at the Adult Day Care $29,583.40

600.54 - Healthy Adventures Foundation Fbk Community Center Wellness Proj. $9,000.00

600.53 - Jeremiah's Ranch Jeremiah's Ranch Support Group $14,750.00

600.19 - Live Oak Park Coalition Health Improvement Proj. for Comm. $40,000.00

600.46 - Mental Health Systems Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition $9,249.00

600.58 - Michelle's Place Breast Health Assistance Program $24,000.00

600.11 - Palomar Family Counseling Service Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds $79,000.00

600.33 - REINS Behavioral Horsemanship Program Behavioral Health & Wellness Therapy $65,000.00

600.37 - Trauma Intervention Program of SD Trauma Intervention Programs $9,000.00

600.48 - UCSD Eyemobile for Children UCSD Eyemobile for Children $8,500.00

Total 600 - Community Health Contracts $858,712.35

TOTAL EXPENSES $1,853,912.35

NET ORDINARY INCOME $263,687.65

Page 20 of 121

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 9



Page 21 of 121



 

 

   
FALLROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, June 7, 2017, 4:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Regional Health District, Board Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook 

 
MINUTES 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
 President Tinker called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Directors present: Director Tinker, Director Abbott, Director Mroz and Director Leach. 
Director Howard Salmon joined the meeting remotely by teleconference  
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 from 3585 South 3500 West, 
Driggs, Idaho 83422. 

 Absent:  None. 
 Staff present:  Executive Director Bobbi Palmer and Board Secretary/Clerk Linda Bannerman. 

 
B. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 There was no public comment. 
 
C. REVIEW OF COMMUNITY HEALTH CONTRACT APPLICATIONS 2017-2018  

A spreadsheet of all applications with amounts requested and amounts granted last year was 
distributed.  It included the total score for each applicant and the amount recommended by the board 
member having reviewed and scored the application. Director Tinker recused himself from any 
discussion of the grant requests for Fallbrook Family Health Center. 
 
There were several recommendations by the executive director for consideration for the 2018-2019 
applications.  Scoring will emphasize health disparities in our communities and consideration of 
achieving sustainability without relying on our Community Health Contracts.  There was discussion 
regarding offering “grant writing” workshops.  With the realization that change is difficult for most 
organizations and takes time, it was suggested that we be generous in approving these applications 
with the understanding that the criteria and scoring will be more difficult moving forward with emphasis 
on aligning services with the vision of the District.  Bobbi Palmer will meet with each of the recipients 
this fiscal year to further discuss the goals and vision of Fallbrook Regional Health District.  It was also 
noted that the additional monies requested this year will be funded by the monies previously spent to 
maintain the old hospital building and grounds. 
Action:  On motion duly made by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon it was agreed to take 
the spreadsheet and total dollars requested as a discussion/action item to the regular board meeting on 
June 14th for consideration of approval on an individual contract basis. Motion carried unanimously 4-0 
(Tinker Abstained). 
  

D. ADJOURNMENT 

 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:59 p.m. 
 
 
      
Gordon Tinker, President 
 
 
      
Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Page 22 of 121



Page 23 of 121



 

 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 - 5:00 P.M. 
Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook CA 92028 

 
MINUTES 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order at 5:12 p.m. by Committee Chair Barbara Mroz 
 
Committee Members Present: Director & Chair Barbara Mroz, Director Bill Leach, Director Gordon 
Tinker and Director Stephen Abbott. 
Director Howard Salmon joined the meeting remotely by teleconference pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54953 from 3585 South 3500 West, Driggs, Idaho 83422 
Also Present:  Executive Director Bobbi Palmer; Accountant Kathy Bogle; Bookkeeper Wendy Lyon and 
Board Secretary/Clerk Linda Bannerman 

2. Public Comments 

None 

3. Review of Financial Statements for April 2017 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of April – March 

2) Income Statement for April 2017 and fiscal year to date  

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – April 2017 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2016 – June 2017 

Chairperson Mroz asked Accountant Kathy Bogle to review the financial statements above.  There 
were no major variances noted.  

5) LAIF Report 

Interest for the first quarter totaled $2765.00 and was added to the account. 

6) Cal-Trust 

There was a break even on market value for this account. 

7) Property Tax Revenue – fiscal year to date 

It was noted the property tax revenue has exceeded budget. 

8) Check Detail as of April 2017 

This report detailed cash disbursements for the month of April. 

9) Budget for Community Health Contract Applications Fiscal Year 2017-2018 

There was discussion regarding the more than $200,000 increase in dollar amounts requested 
from Community Health Contract applicants for 2017-2018.  It was noted that the savings from not 
having to maintain the old hospital building and grounds would more than cover the increase.  
Therefore, the Finance Committee will recommend to the full board that the budget for Community 
Health Contracts be increased. 

10) Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 

The budget remains in process and will be considered at the July Finance Committee meeting. 

4. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:35 p.m. 

 

         

 Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 24 of 121



Page 25 of 121



Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, June 14, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 
 

MINUTES 
 

 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
President Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:18 p.m. and led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
Present:  Directors Stephen Abbott, Barbara Mroz, Howard Salmon and Gordon Tinker. 
Absent:  Director Bill Leach. 
Also present:  Executive Director Bobbi Palmer and Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson. 
 

 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
 None 
 

Prior to presentations, President Tinker reviewed the history of what has been considered by the 
FRHD Board of Directors since they were notified by Community Health Systems (operators of 
the hospital) that they were losing $500,000 per month and would have to terminate their lease 
unless the District covered their losses.  The District’s revenue was $1.5 million per year which 
made covering their losses impossible.  The District immediately sent out Requests for Proposals 
(RFPs) to major hospital operating entities including those in San Diego and Riverside Counties 
to ascertain if they had interest in operating the hospital.  Eight letters of interest were received, 
yet ultimately only one proposal was received from Strategic Global Management.  They 
subsequently withdrew their proposal.  The hospital closed in July of 2015. FRHD arranged for 
security and landscaping services and hired an engineer for the building and maintenance.  An 
RFP for sent out for a real estate broker to assist with the sale of the hospital.  Travis Ives of 
Cushman & Wakefield was selected to serve in that capacity and ran a nationwide search.  
Strategic Global Management once again expressed interest and in all three buildings on the 
District property for a price of $10 million.  The District spent six months negotiating a Purchase & 
Sales agreement with Strategic Global Management, and they canceled the agreement within two 
days of execution.  Multiple entities expressed interest in the hospital building, including a 
company from New York which found it difficult to get California to commit that they would be able 
to take over the hospital license, so they withdrew.  In 2017, Crestwood Behavioral Health visited 
multiple times and made an offer to purchase the hospital building for $4.5 million.  In May the 
Board approved the Purchase & Sale Agreement for the hospital with Crestwood Behavioral 
Health, Inc. for $4.5 million.  Escrow is expected to close in July. 

 
 

C. PRESENTATIONS 
 C1. Fallbrook Healing Center by Executive Vice President  
  Patricia Blum, Ph.D., CPRP of Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. 

Dr. Blum provided the PowerPoint presentation which had been previously presented and 
discussed the history of Crestwood Behavioral Health and her involvement with 
Crestwood.  She said their facility in Fallbrook will be called Fallbrook Healing Center and 
noted that the building can be renovated to meet their needs very well.  They anticipate 
spending a minimum of $2 million dollars on renovation.  (The presentation can be found 
on the District’s website, www.fallbrookhealth.org.)  They also anticipate a minimum of 
108 full-time jobs will be available at Fallbrook Healing Center.   
Members of the audience had questions and Dr. Blum answered them.  There were 
questions about the beds that would be available at Fallbrook Healing Center and where 

Page 26 of 121

http://www.fallbrookhealth.org/


Page 2 of 8 
 

 

the residents would come from and how they would be discharged.  She explained that 
they would be released and transported back to their home communities.  She also said 
the counties in Southern California purchase the beds and fill them.  There was a question 
about unincorporated areas and the support services available in those areas, e.g. 
adequate police services.  Does Fallbrook have adequate support services to cover if 
there is a problem at the Crestwood facility?  People expressed concerns about public 
safety with a facility in Fallbrook treating mentally ill patients.  There was a question about 
how this facility benefits Fallbrook.  Several people in the audience started talking at once, 
expressing dissatisfaction with having lost the hospital.  There was concern about the 
facility being “locked down” and also then allowing the residents of Fallbrook Healing 
Center to volunteer in the community.  One member of the audience working in the mental 
health field said the potential residents for this facility would not include violent criminals at 
risk to escape and terrorize the community.  Another member of the audience who works 
in the mental health care field said he would be more concerned with mentally ill people in 
the community than those confined at the Fallbrook Healing Center until they are able to 
function on their own. 
Dr. Timothy Murphy, a psychiatrist in Fallbrook for more than thirty years, said he is proud 
of the community for being able to accept a facility like this which is so needed by the 
mentally ill.  We have a crisis of short-term hospital beds, and if mentally ill patients aren’t 
ready to live on their own, where do they go?  Most wind up in jails and prisons for minor 
criminal acts due to their illness.  This is the type of program that keeps them off the 
streets.  He said we don’t need to be afraid of mentally ill people who are in treatment for 
their illness.   Another member of the audience said she has an adult child who 
experienced a brain injury and became suicidal.  They needed to find a facility like this to 
help her and she is now fully functioning.  
 

 

D. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Several members of the public had filled out speaker cards to address the Board of Directors.  
Each was allotted up to five minutes to address the members of the Board. 
Mr. Peter Klein questioned the determination of the hospital representing 38% of the District’s 
assets.  He also quoted California Health & Safety Code 32121 Section p(1) and not p(2).  Legal 
Counsel responded discussing the history of the sale of the old hospital building and referred to 
other applicable sections of the Health & Safety Code.  There was a question about assets and 
depreciation.  The Board President invited Mr. Klein to visit the FRHD office to discuss the 
answers to his questions in further detail. 
Mr. Len Tevebaugh said most of his questions had already been discussed during the meeting so 
far.  He said this is a very passionate subject for this community, having owned it for more than 
50 years.  He said everyone should be allowed to vote on this asset of the community.  He said 
he believes the community is not willing to accept this facility in Fallbrook.  He said the Board is 
not doing the community any good; it’s a done deal that was rammed down the throat of the 
community.  He also questioned the old hospital building representing 38% of the assets. 
Mr. Bruce Schwandt said he appreciates the members of the Board answering questions of the 
public.  He wanted to address the general fiduciary responsibilities the Board has to the public.  
He called Supervisor Horn’s office to ask if he was aware of this transaction by the FRHD Board 
and was told the Supervisor was not aware.  He said he asked them about what they knew about 
the Crestwood facility in Chula Vista, and they told him it was a maximum security, sub-acute 
mental treatment facility.  That did not make him feel good.   The purpose of the treatment is to 
have “these folks” released into the community.  How do we know the patients will not be 
released into our community?  How do we know these people aren’t sex offenders or violent 
criminals?  Mr. Schwandt said he is half compassionate, half really selfish.  What if someone 
comes out of this facility and stabs his daughter….he is not okay with that.  When was this 
community consulted?  He said The Long-Range Planning Committee reported in June of last 

Page 27 of 121



Page 3 of 8 
 

 

year that nothing was done.  When the Board knew the asset ratio would drop when selling the 
old hospital building, did we notify our employer (the community) or was this a willful intention?   
Was a notice of adverse action sent to the community?  He said in July of 2016, he had a vote, 
and in May of this year he did not.  That bothers him.  He said he believes that rehab treatment is 
a lucrative business.  Mr. Schwandt said he was told this type of business is a hot topic for 
investigation by the D.A.’s office.   
Ms. Paulette Britton said her questions had been answered. 
Ms. Patricia McPhee left the meeting early. 
Ms. Nancy Heins-Glaser will meet with the Executive Director.  She had already left the meeting. 
Mr. Joseph Beyer said he is a Bonsall resident and he expressed thanks to the Board of Directors 
for their efforts of 2 ½ years and in making a difficult decision.  He said a lot of “not in my 
backyard” sentiments had been expressed, but let’s remember more than 100 jobs will be 
opening up.  Crestwood has been in business for close to 50 years.  Fallbrook is the “Friendly 
Village” and he challenged the community to do “good” and support this facility.  He commended 
Julie Reeder for the good work she does with The Village News.  He thanked Dr. Murphy for his 
comments in support of this facility.  
 

 

E. CONSENT ITEMS 
 E1. Approval of March 2017 Financial Statements  
 E2. Minutes of May 3, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 
 E3. Minutes of May 10, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

Action:  On motion duly made by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve 
the consent items as presented.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 

 

F. REPORTS 
F1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

Committee Chair Barbara Mroz provided the Finance Committee report.  She commented 
to all of the Community Health Contract recipients to continue to do the wonderful work 
they do in our community.  The Finance Committee met at 5:00 p.m. on June 7th.  The 
financial statements for April were reviewed and found to be in order. The current year-to-
date fiscal year property tax was $214, 331 and the LAIF account balance was 
$1,448,487.47 with the Cal-Trust account balance at $4,238,380.86.  The District is in 
good financial order and, with the approval of the Board of Directors, the Finance 
Committee recommended an increase in the Community Health Contracts budget. 

F2. Gov’t/Public Relations/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 
 Report postponed to next meeting. 
F3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 
 Report postponed to next meeting. 
F4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer 

Executive Director Bobbi Palmer reported that nine CSUSM RN students and 6 Bonsall 
High School students are working with a seven member collaborative for the summer 
months.  Members of the collaborative include Fallbrook Regional Health District, 
Fallbrook Smiles Project, Fallbrook Food Pantry, Fallbrook Senior Center, Fallbrook 
Family Health Center, the Foundation for Senior Care and Cal State University San 
Marcos (CSUSM) 

F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 
Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson said other than the comments already made, the remainder 
of his comments would be confined to items G4 and G5 on the agenda. 
 

 

G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 G1. Review of Applicants and Determination of Community Health Contract Applications  
  2017-2018 Funding 

Page 28 of 121



Page 4 of 8 
 

 

President Tinker said each of the Board members had assisted in reviewing the 
Community Health Contract applications for 2017-2018.  He said they would now assist in 
review of the applications for determination of awards. 
Director Barbara Mroz said she had agreed to present the contracts assigned to Director 
William Leach as he was unable to attend the meeting and she would then present her 
assigned contracts. 
Boys & Girls Clubs of North County – Summer Water Safety Program 
This program provides swimming lessons and water safety instruction to approximately 
125 youth during the summer months.   
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$10,000 be awarded to the Boys & Girls Clubs of North County for the Summer Water 
Safety Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
Boys & Girls Clubs of North County – Triple Play 
A multi-faceted program designed to help young people become healthy, active and learn 
new ways to maintain personal health, handle stress and form positive relationships. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$40,000 be awarded to the Boys & Girls Clubs of North County for the Triple Play 
Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
Fallbrook Citizens Crime Prevention Committee – GANAS Mentoring Program 
Children are mentored to overcome the challenges of their circumstances and make wise 
and healthy life choices in nutrition, hygiene, physical activity, charitable giving spirit and 
careers. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$10,000 be awarded to Fallbrook Citizens Crime prevention Committee for the GANAS 
Mentoring Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
Fallbrook Family Health Center – Behavioral Health Services and Primary Care 
Services to underserved population in the District 
Provides behavioral health services for individuals requiring assistance with 
behavioral/mental health conditions that may require medication and/or counseling 
treatment.  Provides a wide range of primary care, dental care and prevention services to 
the underserved population of the Fallbrook Regional Health District. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$100,000 to Fallbrook Family Health Center for behavioral health services and primary 
care, dental care and prevention services to the underserved population of the District. 
Motion carried 3-0.   Director Tinker abstained. Director Leach absent. 
FALLBROOK FOOD PANTRY - Nutritious Food for the Hungry 
Providing nutritionally balanced food to members of our community whose income falls 
below the Federal poverty standard or who come to the Pantry for emergency assistance. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$72,000 be awarded to the Fallbrook Food Pantry for nutritious Food for the Hungry. 
Motion carried  4-0. Director Leach absent. 
FALLBROOK SENIOR CENTER - Fallbrook Senior Center Mobility/Exercise Program 
Provides a safe area to exercise with permanently installed equipment to help seniors be 
proactive in the prevention or reversal of diseases such as type 2 diabetes, heart disease, 
stroke and cancer. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$12,600 be awarded to the Fallbrook Senior Center for the Fallbrook Senior Center 
Mobility/Exercise Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
FALLBROOK SENIOR CENTER - Senior Nutrition - Home Delivered Meal 
Provides 60 to 70 seniors with home delivered meals daily and this outreach includes 
observation and dialogue to provide additional coordination with other services in our 
community as needed. 

Page 29 of 121



Page 5 of 8 
 

 

Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$75,000 be awarded to the Fallbrook Senior Center for the Senior Nutrition – Home 
Delivered Meals Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
FALLBROOK SMILES PROJECT - Celebrate Health 
Provides dental and medical health screenings and education and increasing access to 
care by addressing barriers in the schools, Fallbrook Food Pantry, Fallbrook Senior 
Center and Fallbrook Citizens' Crime Prevention GANAS program. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Mroz, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$71,500 be awarded to the Fallbrook Smiles Project for the Celebrate Health Program.  
Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
At this time Director Stephen Abbott presented the contracts assigned to him to present. 
 
FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE - Fallbrook Adult Day Care Center 
Provides respite, adult day care for the low income disabled adults or seniors with 
baseline health status and healthcare utilization tracked for both client and caregiver with 
special emphasis on the District's identified health disparities, fall or trip incidence and use 
of emergency services. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$29,583 be awarded to the Foundation for Senior Care for the Fallbrook Adult Day Care 
Center.  Motion carried 4-0. Director Leach absent. 
FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE - Care Advocacy Program 
This program provides referrals and resources and/or conduct home visits to seniors and 
disabled residents of the District for medical and non-medical issues, including fall and 
injury related measures, health, financial security and housing transitional services. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$59,838 be awarded for the Care Advocacy Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach 
absent. 
FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE - Care Van & Expanded Rides Program 
Provides free reliable transportation for seniors and disabled citizens to medical and 
physical therapy appointments, pharmacies, grocery stores, food pantry, senior center, 
etc. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$68,773 be awarded to the Foundation for Senior Care for the Care Van & Expanded 
Rides Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
FOUNDATION FOR SENIOR CARE - Door through Door Hospital to Home Program 
A unique program providing a bridge for seniors and disabled adults who experience a 
hospitalization and then are discharged to return home to recover. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to approve 
$50,919 be awarded to the Foundation for Senior Care for the Door through Door Hospital 
to Home Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
At this time Director Salmon presented the contracts assigned to him to present. 
HEALTHY ADVENTURES - Fallbrook Community Center Wellness Project 
Provides healthy cooking, nutrition education classes, and gardening during summer 
months and throughout the school year targeting after school youth from La Paloma 
Elementary School with Family Nights & Healthy Living Classes including parents of the 
youth.  
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve $9,000 
be awarded to Healthy Adventures for the Fallbrook Community Center Wellness Project. 
Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
JEREMIAH'S RANCH - Jeremiah's Ranch Support Group 
Provides opportunity to share information, support and resources to family members, care 
providers and extended family members of children, encompassing all ages and all 

Page 30 of 121



Page 6 of 8 
 

 

developmental disabilities, in a monthly meeting that provides adult/childcare services with 
trained mentors, dinner, guest speakers and social respite time. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve 
$14,750 to be awarded to Jeremiah’s Ranch for the Jeremiah’s Ranch Support Group. 
Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
LIVE OAK PARK COALITION – Seeking to Improve the Park’s Walking and Exercise 
Areas to meet ADA Requirements. 
This coalition is in its second year of fundraising for a total project costing $100,000.   
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve 
$40,000 to be awarded to the Live Oak Park Coalition for the park’s Improved Walking 
and Exercise Areas and to meet ADA Requirements.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach 
absent. 
 
 
Mental Health Systems, Inc. - North Inland Community Prevention Program - 
Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition (FYAC) 
Monitors and reports on emerging trends, informs law enforcement and the community 
about preventive measures to reduce underage access to alcohol and other drugs with 
information about health and other risks associated with alcohol or drug use and abuse. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve $9,249 
to be awarded to Mental Health Systems, Inc. for the North Inland Community Prevention 
Program – Fallbrook Youth Advocacy Coalition.  Motion carried 4-0. Director Leach 
absent. 
MICHELLE'S PLACE - Breast Health Assistance Program 
Provides education and outreach on early detection of breast cancer through facilitating 
diagnostic breast health services to uninsured and underinsured women in the Fallbrook 
Regional Health District and support services including surgical consultations, navigation, 
support groups, wigs, prosthesis and other resources for women while going through 
breast cancer. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Mroz to approve 
$24,000 be awarded to Michelle’s Place for the Breast Health Assistance Program.  
Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent.   
At this time Director Tinker presented the contracts assigned to him to present. 
PALOMAR FAMILY COUNSELING - Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds 
Encompasses obesity prevention strategies and mental health awareness for parents and 
obesity prevention strategies for students and will include counseling for students' mental 
health issues at Fallbrook St School and Maie Ellis Elementary School. 
Action: It was moved by Director Tinker, seconded by Director Abbott to approve $79,000 
to be awarded to Palomar Family Counseling for the Healthy Bodies, Healthy Minds 
Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
REINS - Consulting Therapy Program 
Provides physically and mentally strengthening therapy on horseback to the special needs 
community with the assistance of a large force of well-trained volunteers while promoting 
overall health, well-being and physical activity to all who participate. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Tinker, seconded by Director Abbott, to approve 
$65,000 to be awarded to REINS for the Consulting Therapy Program.   
Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent.  
TRAUMA INTERVENTION PROGRAM OF SAN DIEGO (TIP) - Crisis Intervention 
Provides emotional and practical support immediately to citizens of the District following a 
traumatic event 24/7 365 days per year at the request of first responders. 

Page 31 of 121



Page 7 of 8 
 

 

Action:  It was moved by Director Tinker, seconded by Director Abbott to approve $9,000 
to be awarded to the Trauma Intervention Program of San Diego (TIP) for the Crisis 
Intervention Program.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent.   
UCSD EYE MOBILE FOR CHILDREN 
Provides innovative delivery of education, screening, exams and eye care to low-income 
pre-school children who may needlessly be losing sight and/or struggling with vision 
problems in their early education experience. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Tinker, seconded by Director Abbott to approve $8,500 
to be awarded to the UCSD Eye Mobile for Children.  Motion carried 4-0.  Director Leach 
absent. 
 

 G2. Review of Draft Budget FY 2017-2018 
It was noted that a trial budget would be sent to the Finance Committee for review and 
then brought to the Board next month. 
 

G3. Extension of Real Estate Listing Agreement – Cushman/Wakefield – Travis Ives 
Legal Counsel said a draft letter extending the agreement with Cushman & Wakefield to 
July 31, 2017 has been drafted and is brought to the Board for approval. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to approve the 
extension of the agreement with Cushman & Wakefield to July 31, 2017. Motion carried 4-
0.  Director Leach absent. 

G4. Redemption of 1989 Agreement for Improvements in Public Right of Way –  
Blaise Jackson. Counsel Jackson explained that the 1989 Lien Agreement was a 
development condition imposed by the County in exchange for allowing an expansion to 
the campus size, which occurred in the early 1990’s.  The estimated value of the 
improvements (curb, gutter, resurfacing of the northern half of a portion of Elder street 
was $23,100 in 1989, but that with inflation the current cost of these improvements was 
closer to $45,000.  Counsel suggested that the Board extend authority to negotiate the 
removal of this Lien Agreement in an amount not to exceed $46,000.  Director Abbott so 
moved, seconded by Director Salmon, and the motion carried unanimously 4-0. Director 
Leach absent.  

G5. First amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement 
Legal Counsel said a First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow 
Instructions had been drafted with an agreement to close escrow to close no later than 
July 31, 2017, with no changes to other substantive terms, required Board approval.   
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Abbott to approve the 
First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement and Escrow Instructions.  Motion 
carried 4-0.  Director Leach absent. 
  

 

H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 

The draft budget will brought to the next meeting after the Finance Committee 
reviews and recommends approval.  

  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 
• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) meeting 

– Monday, June 19, 2017, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Public Utility District Board 
Room 

• Wellness Walk – Wednesday, June 21, 2017, Fallbrook Community Center 
• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, July 5, 2:00-3:00pm 

   • Woman of Wellness – Thursday, July 6, 2017, 6pm – Fallbrook Library 

Page 32 of 121



Page 8 of 8 
 

 

H2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, July 12, 2017, Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Board Room 

 
 

I           ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at  8:26 p.m. 
 
 
     
Gordon Tinker, President 
 
 
     
Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Page 33 of 121



Page 34 of 121



Page 35 of 121



Page 36 of 121



Page 37 of 121



 

                     State of California 
  L I T T L E  H O O V E R  C O M M I S S I O N  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Milton Marks Commission on California State Government Organization and Economy  http://www.lhc.ca.gov/lhc.html 
 

  925 L Street, Suite 805  Sacramento, CA 95814  916-445-2125  fax 916-322-7709  e-mail littlehoover@lhc.ca.gov 
 

 
 
Witnesses at Little Hoover Commission’s August and October 2016 public hearings and 
participants at the November 2016 advisory committee proposed numerous recommendations 
for consideration.  At various business meetings in 2017, the Commission discussed these and 
other potential recommendations.  A summary of potential recommendations currently under 
consideration follows. 
 
The June 22 roundtable discussion has been convened to consider if these recommendations 
are helpful, can be implemented or might have unintended consequences.  The Commission also 
welcomes discussion on alternative suggestions.  The primary focus of the roundtable meeting 
discussion will be on the recommendations related to governance and transparency, although 
potential recommendations focusing on climate change adaptation and healthcare districts also 
are included in this summary. 
 
GOVERNANCE - POTENTIAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
• The Legislature, in committee hearings and floor votes, as well as the Governor in bill 

signings, should curtail a growing practice of introducing bills to override LAFCO deliberative 
processes and decide local issues regarding special district boundaries and operations.   

• The Legislature should provide one-time grant funding to pay for specified LAFCO activities, 
particularly to fund certain critical Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) and to incentivize 
LAFCOs or smaller special districts to develop and implement dissolution or consolidation 
plans with timelines for expected outcomes.  This grant process potentially could be 
overseen by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research.  Funding should be tied to 
process completion and results, including enforcement authority for corrective action and 
consolidation.  

• Alternatively or additionally, augment the existing LAFCO funding formula by allocating a 
certain percentage of local property taxes to fund LAFCOs as suggested in testimony from 
the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO).   

• After conducting a Municipal Service Review and finding dissolution or consolidation of 
special districts is warranted, provide LAFCOs the authority to initiate dissolutions or 
consolidations with a higher threshold for a public vote.   

• Require special districts to hold a public hearing on findings and recommendations after the 
completion of a Municipal Service Review. 

• The Legislature should provide LAFCOs the statutory authority to do reviews of inactive 
districts throughout California and dissolve them without the action being subject to protest 
and a costly election process.  SB 448 (Wiekowski) would implement this recommendation.  
The bill was unanimously adopted by the Senate in May 2017, and currently is under 
consideration by the Assembly.  As currently written, the bill also would require each county 
tax bill to list special district taxes and would require the State Controller, by 2019, to 
annually publish a list of all special districts in California.   

• The Legislature should strengthen LAFCOs by easing a process to add special district 
representatives to the 28 county LAFCOs where districts have no voice.  

• The Legislature should adopt legislation to give LAFCO members fixed terms, to ease 
political pressures in controversial votes and enhance the independence of LAFCOs.  

Page 38 of 121



TRANSPARENCY – POTENTIAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
• Every LAFCO website should provide basic information and links to all of the special districts within 

each county service area, including a standardized dashboard reflecting revenues from property 
taxes and user fees, debt service and fund balance changes. 

• Every special district should have a published policy for reserve funds, including the size and purpose 
of reserves and how they are invested. 

• Every special district should have a website that provides the following information in an easy-to-
understand format: 

 
 Name, location, contact data 
 Services provided 
 Governing body, including election information and the process for constituents to run for 

board positions 
 Compensation details – total staff compensation, including salary, pensions and benefits 
 Compensation details for the five staff with highest compensation (including salary, 

benefits, pensions, loans, annual leave balances, annual travel expenses) 
 Budget (including revenues and expenditures, bond debt and the source of revenues, 

including fees, property taxes and other assessments, as well as other revenue) 
 Reserve fund policy 
 An explanation of how the revenue sources are consistent with state law and do not 

constitute a permissible tax 
 Geographic area served and demographic data based on available census data 
 Average and median customer fees and other customer charges 
 Description of relationship and coordination with other local government agencies 
 Copy of most recent Municipal Service Review 
 Copy of most recent annual report provided to the State Controller’s Office 
 State and local agencies providing oversight of operations, compliance with state laws and 

financial reporting and audits and frequency of such reviews and links to the oversight 
bodies websites 
 

• The California Special Districts Association, working with experts in public outreach and 
engagement, should develop best practices for independent special district outreach to the public 
on opportunities to serve on boards and special district elections including election results and voter 
participation data. 

• The State Controller’s Office should disaggregate information provided by independent special 
districts from dependent districts, nonprofits and joint powers authorities on its By the Numbers 
and Employee Compensation websites.  (SB 448 would require the State Controller to list all special 
districts on its website by 2019.) 

• The State Controller’s Office should standardize definitions of special district financial reserves for 
state reporting purposes.  

• The Secretary of State, working with county, city and special district representatives and the State 
Controller, should streamline or consolidate its public agency reporting requirements. 

 

Page 39 of 121



CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION – POTENTIAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

• The Legislature should place a requirement in statute that special districts formally include climate 
adaptation and climate mitigation as key operational considerations within their governing 
documents and missions.  

• The California Special Districts Association (CSDA), in conjunction with its member districts, should 
document and share climate adaptation experiences with the Integrated Climate Adaptation and 
Resilience Program’s adaptation information clearinghouse being established within the Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research (OPR). Similarly, CSDA and member districts should step up 
engagement in the state’s current Fourth Assessment of climate threats, a $5 million state research 
project designed to support the implementation of local adaptation activities.  The CSDA also should 
promote climate adaptation information sharing among its members to help districts with fewer 
resources plan for climate impacts and take actions. 

• The Legislature should replicate statewide a program established by  Oakland-based East Bay 
Municipal Utility District, in which real estate transactions trigger an inspection of sewer lines on the 
property and require repairs if broken.  Or, as an alternative, it should commission a study of costs 
versus benefits – possibly by a university or the appropriate state department.  Such a study would 
build long-term support, if feasible, for legislation.  

• State regulatory agencies should explore the beginnings of a new regulatory framework and 
adaptive approach that incorporates moveable baselines when defining a status quo as climate 
impacts mount.  

• The California Special Districts Association, and special districts, as some of the closest-to-the-
ground local governments in California, should step up public engagement on climate adaptation, 
and inform and support people and businesses to take actions that increase their individual and 
community-wide defenses. 

• The California Special Districts Association and special districts should lead efforts to seek and form 
regional partnerships to maximize climate adaptation resources and benefits. 

HEALTHCARE DISTRICTS – POTENTIAL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
• The Legislature should work with the Association of California Healthcare Districts to enact 

proposals the association developed in 2016 to accomplish these two objectives:  

 Update the 1945 legislative “practice acts” that enabled voters to create local hospital districts, 
renamed healthcare districts in the early 1990s.  Experts widely agree that statutory language in 
the acts no longer reflects rapid changes in healthcare during the past half century, especially 
regarding roles of healthcare districts without hospitals. 

 Make healthcare districts directly respond to local healthcare needs by conducting needs 
assessments every three years and demonstrate annually how they are addressing those needs.  
This information will be shared with the local LAFCO that oversees the district.  

Page 40 of 121



• The Legislature, which has been increasingly inclined to override local LAFCO processes to press 
changes on healthcare districts, should defer these decisions to LAFCOs, which in statute already 
have that responsibility. 

• The Association of California Healthcare Districts and its member districts should step up efforts to 
define and share best practices among themselves.   

Page 41 of 121



Page 42 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 1/9

 

Budget and Policy Post

June 20, 2017

How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect 
Future Property Tax Revenues?

Summary
California’s homeowners are getting older. In recent years, this has contributed to declining property sales and depressed
property tax growth. As California’s homeowners continue to age, however, these patterns are likely to reverse. Home sales
likely will pick up. This, in turn, should lead to faster property tax growth, especially in communities with more older
homeowners and where past home price appreciation was highest. These potential future property tax gains could be
lessened by an increase in transfers of homes from parents to children, which often are exempt from revaluations that trigger
higher property tax payments. These parent-to-child exclusions have been a notable and consistent share of home transfers in
recent years, currently reducing annual property tax revenues by around $1.5 billion statewide. This amount is likely to grow
in the future as homeowners continue to age and look to transition their properties to their children.

Turnover Key to Property Tax Growth
Under Proposition 13, Property Turnover Drives Property Tax Growth. Proposition 13 was a landmark decision by California’s
voters in 1978 to limit property taxes. One key provision of Proposition 13 was a switch from taxing property based on its
market value (what it could be sold for) to taxing it based on its purchase price. In the year a property is purchased, it is taxed at
its purchase price. Each year thereafter, its taxable value is increased by inflation or 2 percent, whichever is lower. Upon resale,
it is again taxed at its purchase price. Under this system, most homes are taxed at a value well below what they could be sold for.
Property sales therefore typically trigger an increase in a property’s taxable value. This, in turn, leads to higher property tax
collections for local governments.

Turnover of Certain Homes Generates More Property Taxes. The bump in property taxes from home sales is highest for homes
with long-tenured owners and homes with significant past appreciation in their market values. This is because the difference
between a property’s taxable value and market value tends to grow with increases in the (1) length of time the home has been
owned and (2) pace of appreciation in the home’s market value.

Slow Turnover Has Depressed Past Revenue Growth
Past Declines in Property Turnover Have Depressed Property Tax Growth. Property turnover has been on a downward
trajectory for many years—as can be seen in Figure 1. Because of the importance of turnover to property tax growth, this
slowdown has depressed property tax growth. We previously discussed <http://lao.ca.gov/LAOEconTax/Article/Detail/215> how this
depression of property tax growth has been evidenced by the fact that recent gains in home prices have translated into less new
property taxes than in the past.

Page 43 of 121

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications?type=Budget%20and%20Policy%20Post
http://lao.ca.gov/LAOEconTax/Article/Detail/215


6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 2/9

Aging Population Contributes to Falling Turnover. Several factors contribute to declining property turnover, including
Proposition 13 <http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3497#Does_Proposition.A013_Reduce_Property_Turnover.3F> . Another major
contributor is that the state’s homeowners are getting older. Figure 2 shows how the age composition of homeowners has
changed in recent years. The share of homes owned by 55 to 75 year olds has been growing for several years, increasing from
31 percent in 2005 to 41 percent in 2015. At the same time, this share dropped from 46 percent to 38 percent for ages 35 to 55
and from 11 percent to 8 percent for those under 35.

Page 44 of 121

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3497#Does_Proposition.A013_Reduce_Property_Turnover.3F


6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 3/9

As Figure 3 shows, homeowners between ages 55 and 75 tend to be less likely to sell their homes than other homeowners, both
younger and older. Because of this, as more and more homeowners fall into this age group, home sales have slowed.

Page 45 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 4/9

Higher Turnover and Property Tax Growth Likely in Future
Home Sales Likely to Pick Up as Homeowners Get Older. Although the aging of California’s homeowners has depressed home
sales in past years, this pattern is likely to reverse in the future. As California’s homeowners continue to age—transitioning from
the 55 to 75 age group to the over 75 age group—more and more will begin to downsize, move into assisted living or with
family, or die. When this occurs, home sales are likely to rise. Between 2003 and 2013, over two-thirds of homes in California
with owners 75 or older were sold to a new owner, compared to less than one-third of homes with owners ages 55 to 75.

Older Homeowners Tend to Have Owned Their Homes Longer. Homeownership tenure tends to increase with age. Figure 4
demonstrates this relationship. The typical 25 to 35 year old homeowner has been in their home for about four and a half years.
In contrast, the typical homeowner over 65 has been in their home for over 20 years. A consequence of this is that the aging of
California’s homeowners will not just increase turnover, it will increase turnover of homes that have not changed hands in many
years.

Page 46 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 5/9

Uptick in Sales by Long-Tenured Owners Would Accelerate Property Tax Growth. As discussed above, turnover of properties
that have been owned for many years generates the greatest boost in property tax revenues. An increase in home sales by older
homeowners therefore could mean a significant uptick in property tax revenues for local governments in coming years.

Potential for Future Property Tax Gains Vary Across Communities. Potential property tax gains from rising turnover among
older homeowners will vary across communities. This variation will be based on two key factors (1) concentration of older
homeowners and (2) past home price appreciation. Communities with higher concentrations of older homeowners generally will
see a bump in property tax revenue. The extent of this effect, however, will depend on past home price appreciation in the
community. The largest boost in revenues will come in communities where home prices have risen the most in past years. Where
prices have not risen as sharply, revenue gains will be smaller.

Examining Different Types of Communities. Figure 5 demonstrates how these factors drive future property tax growth potential
and its variation across communities. The vertical axis plots the share of homeowners in each community who are over 65 years
old, increasing from bottom to top. The horizontal axis shows the average disparity ratio for homes in each community,
increasing from left to right. A disparity ratio is a property’s market value divided by its taxable value. Disparity ratios provide a
good measure of the extent to which past home price appreciation has driven a wedge between homes’ taxable values and market
values. The higher the value, the greater the wedge. The center of the graph (where the axes cross) represents the average of all
the communities—30 percent of homeowners over 65 and a disparity ratio of 1.5.

Figure 5 (Interactive)

Potential Property Tax Gains From Sales By Older Homeowners Vary Across Cities
California Cities With Populations 60,000 or More, 2015

 

(Mouse Over Elements for More Information)

Page 47 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 6/9

Potential Property Tax Gains

Low High

S
ha

re
 o

f H
om

eo
w

ne
rs

 O
ve

r A
ge

 6
5

Disparity Ratio

10%

50%

0.5 2.5

Each quadrant of the graph above demonstrates one of four general types of communities:

Top Right: Older Homeowners, Higher Home Price Growth. Cities in this group—such as Palo Alto, Santa Barbara, and
Walnut Creek—have both a high concentration of older homeowners and high past home price growth. These cities have the
greatest potential for future revenues gains due to sales from older homeowners.

Top Left: Older Homeowners, Lower Home Price Growth. Cities in this group—such as Hemet, Redding, and Richmond—
have a significant amount of older homeowners but have experienced less home price growth in prior years. Potential
revenues gains are more moderate for these cities.

Bottom Right: Younger Homeowners, Higher Home Price Growth. Cities in this group—such as Lakewood, Mountain View,
and Santa Clara—have experienced high home price growth but have fewer older homeowners. Potential revenues gain also
are moderate for these cities.

Bottom Left: Younger Homeowners, Lower Home Price Growth. Cities in this group—such as Fontana, Palmdale, and Perris
—have fewer older homeowners and have experienced less home price growth. These cities have the least potential for
revenue gains.

Use of Inheritance Exclusions Could Rise, Dampening Property Tax Growth
Page 48 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 7/9

Different Rules Apply to Homes Passed From Parents to Children. In general, when a home is transferred to a new owner, its
taxable value is reset to its purchase price. California voters, however, passed Proposition 58 in 1986, which amended the
California Constitution to exempt transfers between parents and children (and later grandparents and grandchildren under certain
circumstances under Proposition 193 [1996]) from revaluation. This allows a child to inherit their parent’s lower taxable property
value.

Parent-to-Child Exclusions Have Had a Notable Impact on Revenues. Over the past decade, around 10 percent of property
transfers have taken advantage of the parent-to-child exclusion to prevent an increase in property tax payments. Figure 6 shows
how many of these exclusions have been used each year during the past decade.

The widespread use of this exclusion has had a notable effect on local government property tax revenues. We estimate that in
2014-15 parent-to-child exclusions reduced statewide property tax revenues by around $1.5 billion from what they would be in
the absence of the exclusion. This is about 2.5 percent of total statewide property tax revenue. This share is higher in some
counties, such as San Luis Obispo (7 percent), El Dorado (6 percent), Sonoma (6 percent), and Santa Babara (5 percent).
Figure 7 reports our estimates of these fiscal effects for the 25 counties where these effects are the largest.

Page 49 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 8/9

Increase in Parent-to-Child Exclusions Could Offset Future Property Tax Gains. It is likely the fiscal effect of this exclusion
will grow in future years as California’s homewoners continue to age and look to transition their homes to their children. Recent
experience supports this expectation. As Figure 8 shows, during the past decade counties that had more older homeowners also
had more parent-to-child exclusions. This suggests a relationship between aging homeowners and parent-to-child exclusions.
Should an uptick in exclusions occur, this could erode some of the potential future property tax gains expected from the
continued aging of California’s homeowners.

Page 50 of 121



6/28/2017 How Will Aging Baby Boomers Affect Future Property Tax Revenues?

http://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/3693 9/9Page 51 of 121



Page 52 of 121



Page 53 of 121



Page 54 of 121



Page 55 of 121



Page 56 of 121



Page 57 of 121



Page 58 of 121



Page 59 of 121



Page 60 of 121



Page 61 of 121



Page 62 of 121



Page 63 of 121



Page 64 of 121



Page 65 of 121



Page 66 of 121



Page 67 of 121



Page 68 of 121



Page 69 of 121



Page 70 of 121



Page 71 of 121



Page 72 of 121



Page 73 of 121



Page 74 of 121



Page 75 of 121



Page 76 of 121



Page 77 of 121



Page 78 of 121



Page 79 of 121



Page 80 of 121



Page 81 of 121



FISCAL POLICY 

 

In 2008, the District Board created the Lease Termination Contingency Fund, to 

build up resources to prepare for the repurchase obligations of the District when 

the CHS lease terminated.  Had the CHS Lease run its course it would have 

terminated in November, 2028. 

The CHS lease formally terminated in July, 2015, and as a result of extensive 

negotiations, the repurchase obligations of the District were limited in scope to 

five million dollars, leaving a balance in the Contingency Fund of almost another 

Five million.  The Board Finance committee has proposed transitioning the 

contingency fund balance to another set of purposes in harmony with the 

District’s ongoing mission. 

Proposal: The Creation of Two (2) District Fund Accounts. 

 

1. Community Investment Fund 

 Long range capital investments such as real estate purchases, new 

construction, health or wellness program establishment, capital purchases for the 

benefit of the communities served by the District. 

 The initial funding for this account would be the balance of the former 

Lease Termination Contingency Fund, plus net receipts from hospital sale. 

 All projects financed by the Community Investment Fund would  be 

approved by the Board, and subject to Health & Safety Code provision 

requirements for public bidding. 

2. Operations Fund 

The Operations Fund would finance Administration, facilities maintenance, 

community health programs, annual community health contracts, and 

other short-term community sponsorships and initiatives. 

Page 82 of 121



 The Operations fund would  be sustainable from annual property tax 

revenues, and rental income (617 Alvarado).  

 Any annual surplus can be moved to the Community Investment Fund (CIF) 

at the Board’s discretion. 

  Starting balance of the Operations Fund would be cash not assigned to the 

Community Investment Fund. 

 

The District monthly and annual financial statements would be modified to allow 

for monitoring and tracking progress of both funds. 

  

 

Page 83 of 121



Page 84 of 121



RESOLUTION NO. 418 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE 

OF DISTRICT’S SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY 

 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to local Hospital District Law (California Health & Safety 

Code Section 32000 et seq.), local healthcare and hospital districts are authorized by the 

state Legislature to purchase, receive, have, take hold, lease, use, and enjoy property of 

every kind and description within the limits of the district, and to control, dispose of and 

convey the same for the benefit of the District; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to this grant of authority, the Board of Directors of 

Fallbrook Healthcare District (“Board”) acquired, constructed and operated Fallbrook 

Hospital at 624 E. Elder Street, Fallbrook (“The Subject Premises”), from 1960 until 

November 3, 1998; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, from November 4, 1998 through July 20, 2015, Fallbrook Hospital 

was operated by Fallbrook Hospital Corporation, a subsidiary of Community Health 

Systems, Inc., pursuant to a long term lease authorized by Health & Safety Code Section 

32121(p). and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the long term lease ended on July 20, 2015, and the District lacked 

the financial resources necessary to assume operation of the hospital as of that date; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, beginning in August, 2015, and continuing over the course of an 

eighteen month period, the District’s consultant received inquiries from different entities 

expressing interest in acquiring all or part of the District’s real property and 

improvements, including the Wellness Center Building (138 South Brandon Road) and 

the outpatient clinic building (617 Alvarado Street); and,   

 

 WHEREAS, the Board lacked the resources to operate the hospital, and had no 

other use for the subject premises that was necessary to or consistent with its mandate to 

promote health services in the community; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board set about the process of identifying a buyer for the subject 

premises in August, 2015, in the hope of locating a successor operator for the facility as 

an acute care hospital; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, in the ensuing fifteen month period, the District was unsuccessful in 

locating an entity who would acquire the property and become an operator of the facility 

Page 85 of 121



as an acute care hospital, thus District broadened its search for a buyer to include other 

entities beginning on or about January 12, 2017; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code Section 32121.2 authorizes the District 

Board, by resolution, to dispose of any surplus property by way of sale to another for fair 

market value; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board had previously offered the subject premises for sale to the 

County of San Diego, the Fallbrook Union Elementary School District, the Fallbrook 

Union High School District and the Palomar Community College District  by letters 

dated on or about January 17, 2017, pursuant to Government Code Section 54222; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the aforementioned agencies (see immediately preceding 

recital) disclaimed any interest in acquiring the subject property;   

 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Fallbrook 

Regional Health District hereby resolves as follows: 

 

 Section 1.  All of the recitals set forth above are true and correct, and this Board  

hereby so finds and determines. 

 

 Section 2.  The Board hereby formally declares the subject premises to be surplus 

property of the District, pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 32121.2. 

 

 Section 3.    The Board hereby authorizes the sale of the Subject Premises for an 

amount not less than fair market value, to Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc., and/or its 

affiliate, Fallbrook Partners., LLC. 

 

 Section 4.  The Board hereby authorizes its Board President, Gordon Tinker, to 

execute any or all documents deemed necessary or essential to the progress of the 

contemplated transaction.  This express authorization shall not take the place of full 

Board consideration and approval for any document requiring formal board action.  In 

President Tinker’s absence, the Board hereby authorizes its Vice President, Howard 

Salmon, to sign on behalf of the District, and its Treasurer, Barbara Mroz, to sign on 

behalf of the District in the event that both Directors Tinker and Salmon are otherwise 

unavailable. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 86 of 121



 Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and 

approval. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Regional 

Health District, State of California, this 12
th

 day of July, 2017, by the following vote: 

 

  AYES:  _______________________________ 

 

  NOES:  _______________________________ 

 

  ABSENT: _______________________________ 

 

  ABSTAIN:  _______________________________ 

 

 

 

   ________________________________ 

   Gordon W. Tinker, President 

      Board of Directors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Board of Directors 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Blaise J. Jackson, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

 

Page 87 of 121



Page 88 of 121



RESOLUTION NO. 419 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT  

RATIFYING THE EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE 

 AND SALE AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT THERETO   

WITH RESPECT TO THE SALE OF REAL PROPERTY,  

AND AUTHORIZING SIGNATORIES IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to local Hospital District Law (California Health & Safety 

Code Section 32000 et seq.), local healthcare and hospital districts are authorized by the 

state Legislature to purchase, receive, have, take hold, lease, use, and enjoy property of 

every kind and description within the limits of the district, and to control, dispose of and 

convey the same for the benefit of the District; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to this grant of authority, the Board of Directors of 

Fallbrook Healthcare District (“Board”) retained the services of a commercial real estate 

consultant in order to assist the Board in identifying prospective tenants/purchasers for 

the District’s real property and improvements located at 624 East Elder Street, which 

property was continuously operated as Fallbrook Hospital until July 20, 2015 (“The 

subject premises”); and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the District had not directly operated the subject premises as an 

acute care facility since November 3, 1998, and lacked the financial resources necessary 

to assume operation of the hospital as of July 20, 2015; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, beginning in August, 2015, and continuing over the course of an 

eighteen month period, the District’s consultant received inquiries from different entities 

expressing interest in acquiring all or part of the District’s real property and 

improvements, including the Wellness Center Building (138 South Brandon Road) and 

the outpatient clinic building (617 Alvarado Street); and,   

 

 WHEREAS, the Board was kept regularly apprised of these inquiries, and 

arranged for said interested entities to inspect the premises, and authorized its consultant 

to solicit offers from and negotiate with any such entities for the purchase of the property; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, during the pendency of this time period, the District Board 

maintained the existing acute care license of the Hospital in anticipation of engaging an 

interested entity to purchase, re-open and operate the facility as an acute care hospital; 

 

Page 89 of 121



 WHEREAS, despite this effort, and notwithstanding the best efforts of the 

District and its Board, Staff and consultants, no feasible proposal to re-open and operate  

Fallbrook Hospital ever materialized;  

 

 WHEREAS, on or about April 12, 2017, the District was approached by 

Crestwood Behavioral Health with a proposal to acquire 624 Elder Street, for the 

intended purpose of opening a Mental Health Recovery Center; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the District invited Crestwood to present at noticed and open regular 

public meetings, May 9, 2017 and again on June 14, 2017; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the District formally notified the California Department of Public 

Health of District’s intent to surrender its General Acute Care Hospital License effective 

June 15, 2017; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the District and Crestwood have executed that certain Purchase and 

Sale Agreement, and first Amendment thereto, wherein Crestwood purports to acquire 

the subject property for the sum of $4.5 million; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the sales price is consistent with the valuation obtained by the 

District from a licensed independent appraiser with expertise and substantial experience 

in the valuation of Medical facility properties; and,   

 

 WHEREAS, the District Board wishes to formally acknowledge the approval of 

the PSA and authorize its Board President to be the authorized signatory for the District 

in this contemplated transaction; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Fallbrook 

Regional Health District hereby resolves as follows: 

 

 Section 1.  All of the recitals set forth above are true and correct, and this Board  

hereby so finds and determines. 

 

 Section 2.  The Board hereby ratifies its approval of the PSA as and First 

Amendment thereto submitted for Board approval at the regular meeting of the Board 

dated June 14, 2017; 

 

 Section 3.    The Board hereby authorizes its Board President, Gordon Tinker, to 

execute any or all documents deemed necessary or essential to the progress of the 

contemplated transaction.  This express authorization shall not take the place of full 

Board consideration and approval for any document requiring formal board action.  In 

President Tinker’s absence, the Board hereby authorizes its Vice President, Howard 

Salmon, to sign on behalf of the District, and its Treasurer, Barbara Mroz, to sign on 

Page 90 of 121



behalf of the District in the event that both Directors Tinker and Salmon are otherwise 

unavailable. 

 
 Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and 

approval. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Regional 

Health District, State of California, this 12
th

 day of July, 2017, by the following vote: 

 

  AYES: _______________________________ 

 

  NOES: _______________________________ 

 

  ABSENT: _______________________________ 

 

  ABSTAIN:  _______________________________ 

 

 

   

   _______________________________ 

   Gordon W. Tinker, President 

      Board of Directors 
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

Board of Directors 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Blaise J. Jackson, Esq. 

General Counsel 
 

Page 91 of 121



Page 92 of 121



Page 93 of 121



Page 94 of 121



Page 95 of 121



Page 96 of 121



Page 97 of 121



Page 98 of 121



Page 99 of 121



Page 100 of 121



Page 101 of 121



Page 102 of 121



Page 103 of 121



Page 104 of 121



Page 105 of 121



Page 106 of 121



Page 107 of 121



Page 108 of 121



Page 109 of 121



Page 110 of 121



Page 111 of 121



Page 112 of 121



Page 113 of 121



Page 114 of 121



Page 115 of 121



Page 116 of 121



Page 117 of 121



Page 118 of 121



Page 119 of 121



Page 118 of 119



Thursday, July 6, 2017 

Fallbrook Library            

124 S. Mission Rd. 

6:00 p.m. – Social/ Refreshments 

6:30 p.m.—7:30 p.m.  Presentation/Door Prizes 

 

Free Event including Refreshments ● Door Prizes 
 

 Please Note:  No need for Reservations at this time 
Please plan to attend and bring a friend!  

 

Questions?  Contact Pam Knox at pknox@fallbrookhealth.org 

Or call 760-731-9187 
 

Please bring non-perishable food items for Fallbrook Food Pantry  

       

 

Featured Presentation: 

“ Drug Interactions & 

Over-The-Counter Implications ” 
It’s important  to always be safe when taking medications. 

Learn about potential interactions and 

Always check with your physician 

Presenter: 
Don Weeks, Pharmacist 

CVS Pharmacy—Fallbrook 

Page 119 of 119




